
Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 
Business Committee Conference Room - 2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

April 7, 2021 
9:00 a.m.  

This Legislative Operating Committee meeting will be closed to the public due to the Public Health State 
of Emergency. This is a preventative measure as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. An audio recording 
of the meeting will be made available on the Nation’s website. 

I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda

II. Minutes to be Approved
1. March 3, 2021 LOC Meeting Minutes (pg. 2)

III. Current Business
1. Audit Committee Bylaws Amendments (pg. 4)

IV. New Submissions
1. Election Law Emergency Amendments (pg. 16)

V. Additions

VI. Administrative Updates

VII. Executive Session

VIII. Recess/Adjourn 

1 of 23

~ 
ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of March 3, 2021 
 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

 
 

 
 
 

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Oneida Business Committee Conference Room-2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

March 3, 2021 
9:00 a.m. 

  
Present: Kirby Metoxen Jennifer Webster, Marie Summers, Daniel Guzman King 
Excused: David P. Jordan 
Others Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Kristen Hooker, Kristal Hill, Rhiannon Metoxen, Brooke 
Doxtator 
 
I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda  

Kirby Metoxen called the March 3, 2021, Legislative Operating Committee meeting to 
order at 9:07 a.m. 
 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to adopt the agenda with one revision, item one (1) under 
Administrative Updates should be moved to item three (3) under Current Business; 
seconded by Marie Summers. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

II. Minutes to be Approved  
1. February 17, 2021 LOC Meeting Minutes 
Motion by Marie Summers to approve the January 20, 2021 LOC meeting minutes and 
forward to the Business Committee for consideration; seconded by Jennifer Webster. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
III. Current Business 

1.   Emergency Management and Homeland Security Law Amendments  
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the Emergency Management and Homeland 
Security law amendments adoption packet and forward to the Oneida Business Committee; 
seconded by Marie Summers. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the resolution titled, “Emergency Management Law 
Citation Schedule” and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration; 
seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
2. Community Support Fund Law Amendments 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the Community Support Fund law amendments 
adoption packet and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration; 
seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.   
 
3.   Oneida Trust Enrollment Committee Bylaws Amendments 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the Oneida Trust Enrollment Committee bylaws 
amendments and legislative analysis “option B” and forward to the Oneida Business 
Committee for consideration; motion not seconded. Motion failed.   
 
 

2 of 23

~ 
ONEIDA 

~ 
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA 



Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of March 3, 2021   
  Page 2 of 2  
 

Motion by Daniel Guzman King to accept the Oneida Trust Enrollment Committee bylaws 
amendments and legislative analysis and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for 
consideration as it is in the packet; seconded by Marie Summers. Motion carried 
unanimously.   

 
IV. New Submissions 
 
V. Additions  
  
VI. Administrative Items 
 
VII. Executive Session 

Motion by Jennifer Webster to go into executive session at 9:35 a.m.; seconded by Marie 
Summers. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to come out of executive session at 10:29 a.m.; seconded by 
Marie Summers. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
1.   Children’s Code Emergency Amendments 
Motion by Jennifer Webster to deny the request for emergency amendments due to the fact 
that it does not meet the standard for emergency legislation provided by the Legislative 
Procedures Act which is that it is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
health, safety, and general welfare of the Reservation population, and move this item from 
a medium priority to a high priority with direction that this be worked on as expeditiously 
as possible; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

VIII. Adjourn 
Motion by Daniel Guzman King to adjourn at 10:31 a.m.; seconded by Marie Summers. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

3 of 23



 

 
 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

 

    
Legislative Operating Committee 

April 7, 2021 

Audit Committee Bylaws Amendments 
 

Submission Date: 1/22/21 Public Meeting: n/a 

LOC Sponsor: David Jordan 
Emergency Enacted: n/a 

Expires: n/a 
  
Summary: This item was added to the Active Files List per the request of the Internal Audit 

Department to have the Oneida Business Committee consider adopting certain amendments to 

the Audit Committee’s bylaws. On February 3, 2021, the Legislative Operating Committee added 

the item to the Active Files List to have the amendments processed in accordance with the 

Legislative Procedures Act.       

 
2/3/21 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Audit Committee bylaws to the Active Files List with 

  David Jordan as the sponsor; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 

Next Steps: 
▪ Accept the Audit Committee Bylaws Amendments and Legislative Analysis and defer to a work 

session, if necessary; and/or 

▪ Forward the Audit Committee Bylaws Amendments to the Oneida Business Committee for 

consideration.  

 

   
 

4 of 23



1 

   

 

  Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 

  2021 04 07 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE BYLAWS 1 

 2 

Article I. Authority 3 

1-1. Name. The name of this committee shall be the Audit Committee, hereinafter referred to as 4 

"Committee." 5 

1-2. Authority. By the authority of the Oneida Business Committee, the Committee was created 6 

by adoption of the Audit Law Resolution BC-07-15-98-C which has been updated to 7 

Internal Audit BC 08 09 17 B. Through the Internal Audit BC 08 09 17 B Law, the 8 

Committee has been delegated the authority to ensure the integrity of the Tribe's Oneida 9 

Nation’s financial reporting and audit systems. Definitions for the words used throughout 10 

these bylaws shall be taken from the Internal Audit BC 08 09 17 B Law. All words not 11 

defined in the Internal Audit BC 08 09 17 B Law shall be used in their ordinary and 12 

everyday sense. 13 

1-3. Office. The office of the Committee shall be located within the exterior boundaries of the 14 

Oneida Reservation and its mailing address shall be P.O. Box 365, Oneida, WI 54155. 15 

l-4.  Membership. 16 

a. Number of members. The Committee shall consist of five (5) members. 17 

b. How elected or appointed. 18 

1. Four (4) Committee members shall be Oneida Business Committee members, 19 

excluding the Treasurer, selected by a majority of the Oneida Business Committee. 20 

A. Any member of the Business Committee, with the exception of the 21 

Treasurer, may serve as Ad Hoc when needed. 22 

2. One (1) Committee member shall be a member of the community who meets the 23 

qualifications of 1-4(d). This member shall be appointed in accordance with the 24 

Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions. 25 

c. How vacancies are filled. Vacancies on the Committee shall be filled in accordance 26 

with section 1-4(b) for the remainder of the outstanding term. 27 

d. Qualifications of  members. 28 

1. The appointed Committee member shall be at least twenty-one (21) years of age and 29 

be an enrolled member of the Oneida NationTribe of Indians of Wisconsin. 30 

2. Committee members shall be both independent and financially literate or have 31 

access to financial expertise, whether in the form of the Chief Financial Officer, a 32 

single individual serving on the Committee, or collectively among Committee 33 

members. Components of financial expertise include: 34 

A. The ability to assess the general application of the principles and 35 

standards in connection with the accounting for estimates, accruals, and 36 

reserves. 37 

B. An understanding of internal controls. 38 

C. An understanding of the procedures for financial reporting. 39 

D. An understanding of Audit Committee functions and responsibilities. 40 

e. Term of office. 41 

1. The terms of the Audit Committee members shall coincide with the term of the 42 

Oneida Business Committee. 43 

2. The term of the appointed community member shall expire midway through the 44 

term of the Oneida Business Committee. 45 

3. Defining independence of each Committee member is important for the TribeNation 46 

and no Committee member may: 47 

A. Be employed by any Tribal entity. 48 

B. Provide contract services to the TribeNation. 49 

5 of 23



2 

   

 

  Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 

  2021 04 07 

 

C. Be a member of any other Tribal Board, Committee or Commission, other 50 

than the Oneida Business Committee. 51 

D. Represent any interests other than the Tribe's Oneida Nation’s while acting 52 

as a member of the Committee. 53 

4. Committee members shall strictly adhere to the Tribe's Oneida Nation’s laws and 54 

policies,.  establishing ethical standards and/or conflicts of interest, and any code of 55 

conduct. All work shall be performed in accordance with the International 56 

Professional Practices   Framework.  Failure   to   do so   may   result   in the   57 

removal from the Committee or termination of an appointment. 58 

 59 

Article II. Officers 60 

2-1. The Committee shall have two (2) officers:  Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson. The terms 61 

of office for the officers shall coincide with the terms of the Oneida Business Committee 62 

members. 63 

2-2. Chairperson Duties. The Chairperson shall preside over all meetings and may not vote 64 

except in the case of a tie. The Chairperson shall be responsible for calling meetings and 65 

notifying members with the assistance of the Internal Audit Department. 66 

2-3. Vice-Chairperson Duties.  The Vice-Chairperson shall assist the Chairperson with his or her 67 

duties, at the request of the Chairperson, and shall preside over all meetings in the 68 

Chairperson's absence. 69 

2-4. How Officers are Chosen.  The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be chosen from the 70 

Oneida Business Committee representatives by all Committee members present at the first 71 

meeting held after the Committee is appointed. 72 

2-5. Personnel. The Committee shall recruit and hire a qualified Internal Audit Manager to lead 73 

the internal audit function and to assure unbiased audit and investigative processes and 74 

reporting. 75 

 76 

Article III. Meetings 77 

3-1. All meetings of the Audit Committee are to be closed session as required by the International 78 

Professional Practices Framework with the exceptions below. 79 

3-2. The Committee shall meet on a monthly basis within the Reservation boundaries.  80 

a. All Committee members are expected to attend each meeting. 81 

b. The Committee may invite entity representatives, auditors or others to attend meetings 82 

and provide per1tinent information. 83 

c. The Committee may hold meetings in executive session with auditors, legal counsel, 84 

and entity representatives as invited. 85 

3-3. Emergency and Special Meetings. Emergency or special meetings of the Committee may 86 

be called by the Chairperson or upon written request of any two (2) members. The 87 

Chairperson shall designate a time and place for holding an emergency or special meeting. 88 

3-4. Virtual Meetings. Virtual meetings are allowed in accordance with Audit Committee 89 

Virtual meetings SOP. 90 

3-45. Notice of Emergency or Special Meeting. Notice of an emergency or special meeting shall be: 91 

a. Members. The Committee shall provide notice to members at least for1ty-eight (48) 92 

hours prior to the date set for any such meeting, unless, for good cause, such notice is 93 

impossible or impractical. . Notice may be communicated in person, or through 94 

electronic communication. 95 

b. Public. The Committee shall provide public notice of special meetings by submitting 96 

the[RJS1] date, time and location of the special meeting to the Intergovernmental Affairs 97 

and Communications Department to be included on the community calendar on the 98 

Tribe's website no later than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the time of the special 99 

6 of 23



3 

   

 

  Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 

  2021 04 07 

 

meeting. 100 

3-56. Quorum. A quorum shall consist of a majority of current members of the Committee and 101 

shall include the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson. 102 

3-76. Order of Business. The regular meetings of the Committee shall follow the order of 103 

business as set out herein: 104 

a.I. Call to Order. 105 

b.II. Approval of Agenda 106 

c.III. Approval of Minutes 107 

d.IV. Old Business 108 

V. New Business 109 

e.VI. Tabled Business 110 

f.VII. Executive Session 111 

g.VIII. Adjourn 112 

3-78. Voting. Decisions of the Committee shall be based on a majority of a quorum of members 113 

present at a meeting. The officer presiding at a meeting shall vote only in case of a tie. 114 

a. Electronic e-polls are allowed as long as they are conducted in accordance with 115 

Conducting Electronic Voting (E-Polls) SOP. 116 

3-89. Stipends. The appointed Committee member shall be paid a meeting stipend of $75.00 per 117 

any meeting  in accordance with Section 11-3 of the Comprehensive Policy Governing 118 

Boards, Committees and Commissions, provided that the meeting has established a quorum 119 

for a minimum of one (1) hour and the Committee member collecting the stipend was 120 

present for at least one (1) hour of the established quorum.. 121 

 122 

Article IV. Reporting 123 

4-1.  Agenda items shall be in an identified format. 124 

4-2. Minutes shall be typed and in a consistent format designed to generate the most informative 125 

record of the meetings of the Committee. 126 

4-3. Handouts, reports, memoranda and the like may be attached to the minutes and agenda, or 127 

may be kept separately, provided that all materials can be identified to the meeting in which 128 

they were presented. 129 

4-4. The Committee shall report to the Oneida Business Committee and to the General Tribal 130 

Council, when appropriate, relative to audits, financial reports, management reports and 131 

recommended corrective measures. 132 

4-5. The Committee shall report to the Oneida Business Committee, as often as deemed 133 

appropriate, the approved Committee minutes, audit reports and appropriate supporting 134 

information. 135 

a. Minutes and audit reports require Oneida Business Committee acceptance in order to 136 

finalize the audit records. 137 

 138 

Article V. Amendments 139 

5-1. The Bylaws of the Committee shall be amended with the approval of a quorum of the 140 

Committee and upon subsequent approval by the Oneida Business Committee.  141 

 142 

Article VI. Responsibilities 143 

6-1. The Committee shall have oversight of the activities of the internal audit function in 144 

independent assignments related to auditing, evaluating, and special investigations related 145 

to detecting fraudulent financial reporting and conducting investigations into fraud and 146 

theft in the Tribe's Oneida Nation’s entities. The Committee shall perform all work in 147 

accordance with the International Professional Practices Framework. 148 

7 of 23



4 

   

 

  Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 

  2021 04 07 

 

6-2. Enforcement. The Committee shall have the ability to utilize all existing enforcement 149 

authorities to carry out their responsibilities to achieve their purpose, including:  150 

a. Request the Business Committee to compel entity representatives to attend meetings 151 

in order to represent issues. 152 

b. Request the Business Committee to compel entity representatives to comply with audit 153 

requests and reply to audit reports. 154 

c. Instruct the external auditor and the internal auditor that the Committee expects to be 155 

advised if there are any areas that require its special attention. 156 

d. Request the Business Committee to issue notices of noncompliance to entity employees 157 

in accordance with the disciplinary provisions relating to work performance and 158 

personal actions, as provided for in the Tribe's Oneida Nation’s Personnel Policies and 159 

Procedures. 160 

e. Request the Business Committee to issue notices of violation of Oath of Office, as 161 

appropriate, to entity members. 162 

f. Seek improvements to assure the Tribe's Oneida Nation’s laws and policies establishing 163 

ethical standards and/or conflicts of interest, as well as any code of conduct implemented 164 

are current and adequate to ensure fairness for all and equity by protecting the resources. 165 

6-3. Financial Statements. The Committee shall review and discuss annual statements and 166 

Managements Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) with auditors. 167 

6-4. Internal Control. The Committee shall ensure that entities have developed and follow an 168 

adequate system of internal control, including: 169 

a. Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. 170 

b. Risk assessment and risk management. 171 

c. Adopt a code of ethics which includes monitoring and enforcement. 172 

d. Establish procedures for the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints; establish a 173 

confidential anonymous submission by individuals for concerns regarding questionable 174 

matters. 175 

e. Ensure open communication and information flow with entities, internal auditors and 176 

external auditors. 177 

6-5. External Audit. The Committee shall be responsible for evaluating and recommending to the 178 

Oneida Business Committee, an independent public accounting firm for the annual or any 179 

special audit, unless there is a prior alternative written agreement in place delegating the 180 

responsibility for a given special audit. When an external auditor is hired, the Committee 181 

shall: 182 

a. Verify the qualifications of the external auditor. 183 

b. Oversee the performance of the external audit. 184 

c. Assure all reports from the external auditor go directly to the Committee. 185 

6-6. Compliance. The Committee shall review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring 186 

compliance with laws and regulations and the results of an entity's investigation and follow-187 

up of any instances of non-compliance. Special audits and/or investigations may be 188 

recommended by the Audit Committee. 189 

6-7. Other Responsibilities. The Committee shall complete a self-evaluation annually to identify 190 

improvement opportunities. This includes comparing the Committee's performance to its 191 

bylaws, any formal guidelines and rules, and against best practices.  Such review is 192 

confidential and may or may not include evaluations of particular members. 193 

 194 

 195 

These Bylaws are hereby attested to as adopted by the Audit Committee at a duly called 196 

8 of 23



5 

   

 

  Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 

  2021 04 07 

 

meeting held on the 14 of January  , 2016 by the Audit Committee Chairperson's signature. 197 

 198 
Tehassi Hill, Chairperson 199 

Audit Committee 200 

 201 

These By-Laws are also approved by the Oneida Business Committee at a duly called meeting 202 

held on the _27_ of January , 2016 by the Secretary of the Oneida Business Committee's 203 

signature. 204 
 205 

Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary Oneida Business Committee 206 

9 of 23



Analysis to Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2021 04 07 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 Audit Committee Bylaws Amendments 

   Legislative Analysis 

 
 

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office 
 

Intent of the 

Amendments 

The Audit Committee (“Committee”) bylaws were added to the Active Files List per 

the request of the Internal Audit Department to amend the Committee’s bylaws in 

accordance with the Legislative Procedures Act as follows: 

• To Remove the requirement that the Committee member from the community be 

appointed in accordance with the Boards, Committees and Commissions law 

[Proposed Bylaws 1-4(b)(2)];  

• To allow for Committee meetings to be attended virtually so long as they are 

conducted in accordance with the Committee’s Virtual Meetings SOP [Proposed 

Bylaws 3-4]; 

• To add flexibility to the section governing how notice of special or emergency 

Committee meetings is provided to the members, as well as the public [Proposed 

Bylaws 3-5(a) – (b)]; 

• To allow voting to occur via e-polls so long as they are conducted in accordance 

with the Committee’s SOP governing their use [Proposed Bylaws 3-8]; 

• To remove the requirement that meeting stipends be paid per the Boards, 

Committees and Commissions law, and that eligibility for stipends be dependent 

upon whether a member attended at least one (1) hour of a Committee meeting 

that had established a quorum for at least one (1) hour [Proposed Bylaws 3-9]; 

and 

• To update certain references and language within the bylaws to coincide with the 

Nation’s current practices, such as using the term “Nation” instead of “Tribe” to 

refer to the Oneida Nation [Proposed Bylaws 1-4(d)(1)].    

Purpose The Audit Committee is as a standing committee of the Oneida Business Committee 

(“OBC”) that was established pursuant to the Nation’s Internal Audit law, which was 

adopted and subsequently amended through resolutions BC-07-15-98-C and BC-08-

09-17-B, to oversee the internal audit process, including, but not limited to, any and 

all violations of the Nation’s policies, laws, rules and directives. [1 O.C. 108.1-1]. 

Related 

Legislation 

Oneida Nation Constitution, Internal Audit law, Social Media Policy, Travel and 

Expense Policy, Conflict of Interest law, Open Records and Open Meetings law; 

Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management law; Computer Resources 

Ordinance. 

Enforcement/Due 

Process 

Committee members are required to strictly adhere to the laws, as well as policies, 

of the Nation regarding ethics and/or conflicts of interest and any code of conduct, 

including the International Professional Practices Framework. A failure to adhere to 

the above could result in a member’s removal from the Committee or a termination 

of his/her appointment. [Committee Bylaws 1-4(e)(4)]. The Internal Audit law grants 

the Committee the authority to utilize all existing enforcement mechanisms to carry 

out its responsibilities as set forth therein. [1 O.C. 108.4-2].   

Public Meeting Public meetings are not required for bylaws. 

Fiscal Impact A fiscal impact statement is not required for bylaws. 

10 of 23



Analysis to Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2021 04 07 

Page 2 of 6 
 

SECTION 2. BACKGROUND 1 
A.   Bylaws provide a framework for the operation and management of a board, committee or commission 2 
 of the Nation; the government of its members; and the regulation of its affairs. 3 
B. The Audit Committee was established pursuant to the Internal Audit law, which was adopted and 4 

subsequently amended by resolutions BC-07-15-98-C and BC-08-09-17-B, respectively. [1 O.C. 108.2-5 
1]. The Committee is a standing committee of the OBC that oversees the internal audit process, 6 
including, but not limited to, any investigations into complaints alleging or suspecting improprieties 7 
and/or violations of the Nation’s policies, laws, rules and directives. [1 O.C. 108.4-1]. 8 

C. On February 3, 2021, the Legislative Operating Committee added this item to the Active Files List, per 9 
the request of the Internal Audit Department, to amend the Committee’s bylaws in accordance with the 10 
Legislative Procedures Act. 11 

D. The Committee’s current bylaws were adopted in January of 2016 and have not been updated since. As 12 
a standing committee of the OBC, the Audit Committee is not subject to the Boards, Committees and 13 
Commissions law, and thus, amendments to its bylaws do not have to conform to the provisions therein 14 
that govern the bylaws of other boards, committees and commissions of the Nation not exempted 15 
therefrom. [1 O.C. 105.1-1(a)]. 16 

     17 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENTS 18 
This section details the changes to the bylaws from the previously adopted bylaws. 19 

 20 
A. Article I. Authority. 21 

▪ Section 1-4(b) – Membership. Under its current bylaws, the Committee’s membership is made up 22 
of four (4) members from the Oneida Business Committee and one (1) member from the 23 
community, for a total of five (5) Audit Committee members. [Committee Bylaws 1-4(b)(2)]. 24 
Except for the Treasurer, who is barred from being a member of the Committee, the OBC 25 
Committee members are “selected by a majority of the Oneida Business Committee”. [Committee 26 
Bylaws 1-4(b)(1)]. The Committee member from the community is selected through appointment 27 
in accordance with the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions 28 
(n/k/a/ the Boards, Committees and Commissions law). [Committee Bylaws 1-4(b)(2)].  29 
 30 
This section was revised to remove the requirement that the member of the Committee from the 31 
community be selected through appointment in accordance with the Boards, Committees and 32 
Commissions law. [Proposed Bylaws 1-4(b)(2)]. It now reads that “[o]ne (1) Committee member 33 
shall be a member of the community who meets the qualifications of 1-4(d).” [Id.].  34 
• Impact: The Committee no longer has to follow the process for appointment as set forth in 35 

the Boards, Committees and Commissions law when selecting its member from the 36 
community. It is not clear, however, what process would be used for purposes of selecting 37 
the community member. As noted in section 5 of this Legislative Analysis, the Committee 38 
may want to consider adding the intended selection process to this section of its bylaws to 39 
avoid confusion and/or inconsistency in the future.   40 

    41 
B. Article III. Meetings. 42 

▪ Section 3-4 – Virtual Meetings. This section was added to the Committee’s bylaws to allow for 43 
virtual meetings of the Committee to be held so long as in accordance with the Committee’s 44 
Standard Operating Procedure (“SOP”) titled, Virtual Meetings. [Proposed Bylaws 3-4]. 45 
• Impact: This added provision will allow for the Committee to still hold meetings and conduct 46 

business even if one or all of its members cannot attend a meeting in person; provided, the 47 
process set forth in the applicable SOP is followed.   48 

▪ Section 3-5 – Notice of Emergency or Special Meeting. This section, renumbered from 3-4 to 3-49 
5, was revised to:  50 

11 of 23



Analysis to Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2021 04 07 

Page 3 of 6 
 

(1) include an exception to the forty-eight (48) hour notice mandate when “for good cause, 51 
such notice is impossible or impractical” [Proposed Bylaws 3-5(a)]; and  52 

(2) remove the subsection regarding public notice altogether [Committee Bylaws 3-4(b) & 53 
Proposed Bylaws 3-5].   54 

▪ Section 3-8 – Voting. This section, renumbered from 3-7 to 3-8, was revised to include a subsection 55 
that allows voting to occur by e-poll; provided, that the e-poll is conducted in accordance with the 56 
Committee’s SOP titled, Conducting Electronic Voting (E-Polls). [Proposed Bylaws 3-8(a)]. 57 

• Impact: Including e-polls as another voting option provides the Committee more flexibility 58 
when, for example, formal action is necessary before the next scheduled meeting of the 59 
Committee.     60 

▪ Section 3-9 – Stipends. Section 3-8 of the Committee’s bylaws currently provides that “[t]he 61 
appointed Committee member shall be paid a meeting stipend in accordance with Section 11-3 of 62 
the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions, provided that the 63 
meeting has established a quorum for a minimum of one (1) hour and the Committee member 64 
collecting the stipend was present for at least one (1) hour of the established quorum.” [Committee 65 
Bylaws 3-8]. Under the proposed bylaws, this section, renumbered as 3-9, will now read that “[t]he 66 
appointed Committee member shall be paid a meeting stipend of $75.00 per any meeting provided 67 
that the meeting has established a quorum.” [Proposed Bylaws 3-9].  68 

• Impact: This revision provides clarification as to the amount (i.e., $75.00) the Committee 69 
member from the community is eligible to receive for attending a Committee meeting and 70 
removes any of the requirements and/or restrictions that may have attached if eligibility was 71 
governed by the Boards, Committees and Commissions law.   72 
 73 

SECTION 4.  LEGISLATION RELATED TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS  74 
Below is a summary of laws referenced in and related to the proposed amendments to the Audit Committee 75 
bylaws. 76 
 77 
A. Oneida Nation Constitution. The Constitution of the Oneida Nation contains a provision that allows 78 

for the creation of committees for the proper conduct of tribal business of the Nation. [Oneida Nation 79 
Constitution, Article IV, Section 1(g)]. There are no conflicts between the proposed bylaws amendments 80 
and the Oneida Nation Constitution. 81 

 82 
B. Internal Audit [1 O.C. Chapter 108]. This law creates a process by which internal audits are conducted 83 

upon the Nation’s entities and delegates responsibilities for the purpose of conducting such audits. The 84 
Audit Committee, established under section 108.4-1 of the law, is a standing committee of the OBC 85 
with the responsibility for overseeing the internal audit process, including, but not limited to, any and 86 
all investigations into complaints received alleging or suspecting improprieties and/or violations of the 87 
Nation’s policies, laws, rules and directives. [1 O.C. 108-4-1]. There are no conflicts between the 88 
proposed bylaws amendments and the Nation’s Internal Audit law.    89 

 90 
C. Social Media Policy [2 O.C. Chapter 218]. This law regulates social media accounts, including how 91 

content is managed and published on behalf of the Nation. [2 O.C. 218.1-1]. Committee members are 92 
required to strictly adhere to the Nation’s laws and policies regarding ethical standards and/or conflicts 93 
of interest, which would include the Social Media Policy, when acting in their official capacity. 94 
[Proposed Bylaws 1-4(e)(4)]. There are no conflicts between the proposed bylaws amendments and the 95 
Nation’s Social Media Policy.     96 

 97 
D.  Travel and Expense Policy [1 O.C. Chapter 219]. This law establishes policies that govern the 98 

reimbursement of travel and related expenses incurred during the conduct of company business. [2 O.C. 99 
219.1]. It states that “any travel for Boards, Committees and Commissions must be authorized by sign 100 
off authority as indicated within the entity’s approved bylaws.” [2 O.C. 219.4-1].  The proposed bylaws 101 

12 of 23



Analysis to Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2021 04 07 

Page 4 of 6 
 

are silent on the issue of travel, as well as travel reimbursement. Thus, absent guidance from one of the 102 
policies referenced within the Committee’s bylaws, such as the International Professional Practices 103 
Framework, multiple interpretations, including that authorization is not required, may result. Although 104 
the proposed bylaws amendments do not conflict with the Nation’s Travel and Expense Policy, as 105 
indicated in section 5 of this Legislative Analysis, the Committee may want to consider adding 106 
clarification on whether authorization is required and, if so, who holds such authority within its bylaws. 107 

      108 
E. Open Records and Open Meetings [1 O.C. Chapter 107]. This law sets the requirements for how 109 

meetings of the Nation’s governmental bodies shall be conducted, as well as how materials from that 110 
meeting shall be maintained and made available to the public. [1 O.C. 107.1 & 107.12]. “Governmental 111 
bodies” is defined to encompass most of the Nation’s boards, committees and commissions [1 O.C. 112 
107.31(d)], which means that, absent an exception, meetings of a governmental body, such as the Audit 113 
Committee, are to be open to the public and the materials therefrom available for public inspection so 114 
long as they constitute a “record” as defined within the law. [1 O.C. 107.15 & 107.17].  115 
▪ Record Release/Retention. Section 107.4 of the Open Records and Open Meetings law sets forth 116 

exceptions and limitations to the public’s access to records produced in the course of governmental 117 
business that are of a sensitive nature, and thus, the public’s right to inspect is outweighed by the 118 
public interest in keeping them confidential. [1 O.C. 107.4-1]. This section contains a subsection 119 
specifically related to audit records, which states that their release shall be governed by the Internal 120 
Audit law. [1 O.C. 107.4-2].  121 

 122 
  With respect to the release of audit records, the Internal Audit law provides as follows: 123 

• That, prior to communicating any information related to an audit to an external entity, 124 
including, but not limited to, law enforcement agencies, the Internal Audit Department 125 
shall receive approval from the Committee [1 O.C. 108.7-4]; 126 

• That, once the Committee has approved the final audit report, it shall be forwarded to the 127 
OBC for acceptance and, if accepted, the OBC shall include in its acceptance notice that 128 
the audit report is released for members of the Nation to view in whole, subject to redaction 129 
as deemed necessary by the Oneida Law Office [1 O.C. 108.6-7]; 130 

• That, audit reports may not under any circumstances be provided in a General Tribal 131 
Council agenda packet [1 O.C. 108.8-1]; 132 

• That, only members of the Nation may request access to internal and/or external audit 133 
reports, provided that: 134 

o prior to granting access, the custodian of the report shall require that requesters 135 
verify their status by means of a Tribal member identification card and that they 136 
sign and print their full name on the applicable audit report access log [1 O.C. 137 
108.8-1(a)]. 138 

• That, custodians of audit reports shall limit access to on-site review and deny permission 139 
to print and/or make copies of audit reports [1 O.C. 108.8-1(b)];  140 

• That, requests for internal audit reports shall be submitted to the Internal Audit Department 141 
and that the Internal Audit Department shall keep all information related to an incomplete 142 
audit, including audit progress, strictly confidential until the audit report has been approved 143 
by the OBC and released for members of the Nation to view [1 O.C. 108.8-2]; 144 

• That, the Committee may provide progress updates related to incomplete audits to the OBC 145 
upon request; however, such updates must be conducted in executive session [1 O.C. 108. 146 
8-2]; 147 

• That, all external annual audit reports, including those of a vendor, consultant or other party 148 
organized outside of the Nation’s Federal Identification Number may be made available 149 
for members of the Nation to view directly with the audited entity [1 O.C. 108.8-3]; and 150 

• That, requests for annual financial audits of the Nation shall be submitted to the responsible 151 
custodian located at any of the following locations: 152 

13 of 23



Analysis to Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2021 04 07 

Page 5 of 6 
 

o the Oneida Community Library; 153 
o the Office of the Nation’s Treasurer; 154 
o the Finance Department; and/or 155 
o the Oneida Business Committee Records Management Office(s). [1 O.C. 108.8-3 156 

(a) – (d)]. 157 
  158 
 With respect to record retention, the Internal Audit law simply provides that the Internal Audit 159 

Department shall maintain all information collected or derived from an audit and that, upon closure 160 
of an audit, all documentation shall be retained in a secure location “in accordance with the laws 161 
of the Nation.” [1 O.C. 108.5-4]. This means that one must go back to the Open Records and Open 162 
Meetings law to further determine how to lawfully retain records that are collected or derived from 163 
an audit under the Internal Audit law.    164 

 165 
 Section 107.9 of the Open Records and Open Meetings law governs the retention of records that 166 

are produced in the course of governmental business. [1 O.C. 107.9-1]. It provides, in pertinent 167 
part, that “[u]nless an alternate retention period is approved by the Oneida Business Committee for 168 
specific records and except as otherwise provided by law, all records shall be retained at least seven 169 
(7) years before destruction.” [1 O.C. 107.9-4]. Because the Internal Audit law is silent on the 170 
period of retention and there appears not to be an alternative retention schedule that governs audit 171 
records, the Committee is legally obligated to retain all records, as defined under the Open Records 172 
and Open Meetings law, in a secure location for a period of at least seven (7) years. [1 O.C. 108.5-173 
4 & 1 O.C. 107.9-4].  174 

 175 
 The proposed bylaws amendments do not conflict with the portion of the Open Records and Open 176 

Meetings law that governs the release and retention of records. 177 
 178 

▪ Meetings of Governmental Bodies. Section 107.15 of the Open Records and Open Meetings law 179 
provides that all meetings of governmental bodies other than the OBC shall be preceded by public 180 
notice and, except where otherwise provided by any other laws or bylaws, shall be held in open 181 
session. [1 O.C. 107.15-1]. Public notice of all meetings of a governmental body shall set forth the 182 
time, date and place of the meeting and shall be given in the following manner: 183 

• As required by any other laws or bylaws; 184 
• By communication from the presiding officer to the editor of the Kalihwisaks when the 185 

submission deadline precedes a meeting date; and 186 
• At least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the commencement of such a meeting, unless for 187 

good cause, such notice is impossible or impractical, in which case shorter notice may be 188 
given. [1 O.C. 107.15-2]. 189 
  190 

The proposed bylaws state that “[a]ll meetings of the Audit Committee are to be closed session as 191 
required by the International Professional Practices Framework.” [Proposed Bylaws 3-1]. The 192 
bylaws contain an exception that allows for the Committee to invite entity representatives, auditors 193 
or others to attend meetings and provide pertinent information. [Proposed Bylaws 3-1(b)]. With 194 
respect to the manner in which members are to be notified of Committee meetings, the proposed 195 
bylaws state “[t]he Chairperson shall be responsible for calling meetings and notifying members 196 
with the assistance of the Internal Audit Department.” [Proposed Bylaws 2-2]. In addition, the 197 
bylaws state that the Committee shall provide notice to members at least forty-eight (48) hours 198 
prior to the date set for such meeting, “unless, for good cause, such notice is impossible or 199 
impractical.” [Proposed Bylaws 3-5]. 200 
 201 
The proposed bylaws are silent on the issue of public notice because the provision governing public 202 
notice, as set forth in its current bylaws, was deleted. [Proposed Bylaws 3-4(b)]. According to 203 

14 of 23



Analysis to Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2021 04 07 

Page 6 of 6 
 

section 107.15-1 of the Open Records and Open Meetings law, public notice of a meeting of a 204 
governmental body other than the OBC, as set forth in the section immediately below, is required 205 
even if such meeting is closed to the public. [1 O.C. 107.15-1 & 107.15-2]. It is not clear whether 206 
any of the policies referenced within the Committee’s bylaws, such as the International Professional 207 
Practices Framework, address meeting notice in a manner that would satisfy section 107.15 of the 208 
Open Records and Open Meetings law. Without the issue being expressly addressed within the 209 
bylaws, a possible conflict exists between the Committee’s proposed bylaws amendments and the 210 
portion of the Nation’s Open Records and Open Meetings law that governs public notice.     211 

 212 
F. Computer Resources Ordinance [2 O.C. Chapter 215]. This law regulates the use of computer 213 

resources that are owned and operated by the Nation and, among other individuals, applies to members 214 
of a board, committee or commission. [2 O.C. 215.1-1 & 215.3-1]. The proposed bylaws amendments 215 
comply and are not in conflict with the Nation’s Computer Resources Ordinance. 216 

 217 
G. Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management [2 O.C. Chapter 210]. This law establishes 218 

standards for individuals who drive a fleet vehicle or personal vehicle on official business and regulates 219 
the use of all vehicles owned and leased by the Nation. [2 O.C. 210.1-1]. The Committee is considered 220 
an entity and its members considered officials who are authorized to travel on behalf of and in vehicles 221 
owned by the Nation. [2 O.C. 210.3-1(g) & (j)]. The proposed bylaws amendments are not in conflict 222 
with the Nation’s Vehicle Driver Certification and Fleet Management law.     223 

 224 
H. Conflict of Interest [2 O.C. Chapter 217]. This law establishes specific limitations on the handling, as 225 

well as sharing, of information/materials that are confidential in nature or could be used by the Nation’s 226 
competitors and providers during negotiations to the Nation’s detriment. [2 O.C. 217.1-1]. It applies to 227 
the Nation’s employees, contractors, elected officials, officers, political appointees and appointed/ 228 
elected members of the Nation’s boards, committees and commissions. [2 O.C. 217.1-1]. With respect 229 
to any laws/polices of the Nation governing conflicts of interest, the proposed bylaws state that 230 
Committee members shall strictly adhere. [Proposed Bylaws 1-4(e)(4)]. The proposed bylaws 231 
amendments do not conflict with the Nation’s Conflict of Interest law. 232 

 233 

SECTION 5.  OTHER CONSIDERATIONS  234 
A. Section 1-4 of the proposed bylaws does not state how the Committee member from the community 235 

will be selected. To avoid inconsistencies and confusion, the Committee may want to consider adding 236 
language to govern the process.  237 
 238 

B. Section 1-4(e) refers to “Tribal” entity and “Tribal” board, committee or commission. It is unclear 239 
whether this is referring to something broader than an entity of the Nation and/or a board, committee 240 
or commission of the Nation. If it is meant to have a broader application, the Committee may want to 241 
consider defining the word “Tribal”.    242 

 243 

C. As indicated above, the Committee’s bylaws are silent on the issue of travel and travel reimbursement; 244 
more specifically, whether advance travel authorization is required and, if so, who holds such authority. 245 
The Committee may want to consider addressing this issue within its bylaws to avoid any confusion or 246 
inconsistent processes in the future.  247 

 248 

D. As indicated above, a possible conflict of interest exists between the proposed bylaws amendments and 249 
the Nation’s Open Records and Open Meetings law; specifically, the requirement relating to public 250 
notice of Committee meetings, even if held in closed session. If this issue is addressed within any of 251 
the policies referenced within the Committee’s bylaws, the simple fix would be to reiterate such policy 252 
within the bylaws. If not, the conflict should be resolved by adding a provision to address public notice 253 
within the proposed bylaws before submitting to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration.            254 

15 of 23



Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
O Bo      Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

1) Request Date: _____________________________________________________

2) Contact Person(s): ______________________________________

Dept:____________________________

Phone Number:_________________________ Email: __________________________________

3) Agenda Title:___________________________________________________________________

4) Detailed description of the item and the reason/justification it is being brought before the LOC:

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

List any supporting materials included and submitted with the Agenda Request Form

1) ________________________________

2) ________________________________

3) ________________________________

4) ________________________________

5) Please list any laws, policies or resolutions that might be affected:

_______________________________________________________________________________

6) Please list all other departments or person(s) you have brought your concern to:

______________________________________________________________________________

7) Do you consider this request urgent? Yes  No

If yes, please indicate why:

________________________________________________________________

I, the undersigned, have reviewed the attached materials, and understand that they are subject to action by 
the Legislative Operating Committee. 

Signature of Requester:

__________________________________________________________________________

Please send this form and all supporting materials to:

LOC@oneidanation.org
or

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC)
P.O. Box 365

Oneida, WI 54155
Phone 920-869-4376 

03/24/21
Candance House - Oneida Election Board

Oneida Election Board
n/a Election_Board@oneidanation.org

Election Law Emergency Amendments

On 3/24/21 the Oneida Election Board submitted a request for
emergency amendments to the Election law to the OBC. The OBC then
adopted a motion to send the request from the Election Board for
emergency amendments to the Election law to the LOC for consideration.

Excerpt from 3/24/21 OBC Meeting Packet Materials

Oneida Business Committee

Request for Emergency Amendments - Special Election Caucus scheduled for May 8, 2021

N/A - OBC directive to send request to LOC

16 of 23



$�JRRG�PLQG��$�JRRG�KHDUW��$�VWURQJ�ILUH�

2QHLGD�1DWLRQ
2QHLGD�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG

32�%R[������ 2QHLGD��:,�����������
RQHLGD�QVQ�JRY

0(025$1'80�
7R� %XVLQHVV�&RPPLWWHH

)URP� &DQGDQFH�+RXVH��(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG�&KDLU

'DWH� 0DUFK���������

5H� (PHUJHQF\�$PHQGPHQWV�WR�(OHFWLRQ�/DZ

7KH�SXUSRVH�RI�WKLV�PHPRUDQGXP�LV�WR�PDNH�D�UHTXHVW�WR�WKH�2QHLGD�%XVLQHVV�
&RPPLWWHH�WR�PDNH�HPHUJHQF\�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�WKH�(OHFWLRQ�/DZ�GXH�WR�WKH�3XEOLF�
+HDOWK�6WDWH�RI�(PHUJHQF\��

%DFNJURXQG

2Q�0DUFK����������%&�5HVROXWLRQ ���������'�([WHQVLRQ�RI�'HFODUDWLRQ�RI�3XEOLF�+HDOWK�
6WDWH�RI�(PHUJHQF\�8QWLO�0D\����������ZDV�DGRSWHG��7KH�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG�KDV�
VFKHGXOHG�WKH������6SHFLDO�(OHFWLRQ�&DXFXV�IRU�0D\����������6LQFH�LW�LV�DGYLVHG�IRU�WKH�
PHPEHUVKLS�WR�VWD\�KRPH�DQG�WR�VRFLDO�GLVWDQFH�WKH�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG�KDV�GHFLGHG�LW�
ZRXOG�EH�LQ�EHVW�LQWHUHVW�WR�FDQFHO�WKH�FDXFXV��

:KHQ�WKH�&29,'����3DQGHPLF�FDPH�WR�WKH�2QHLGD�5HVHUYDWLRQ�LQ������DIIHFWLQJ�WKH�
�����*HQHUDO�(OHFWLRQ�&DXFXV��WKH�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG�SURYLGHG�DQRWKHU�ZD\�IRU�WKH�
PHPEHUVKLS�WR�DSSO\�IRU�YDFDQFLHV��7KH�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG�LV�UHTXHVWLQJ�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�
EH�PDGH�WR�WKH�(OHFWLRQ�/DZ�VR�VDIH�SURFHVVHV�FDQ�EH�LPSOHPHQWHG�IRU�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
SURFHVV��7KLV�LQFOXGHV�HOLPLQDWLQJ�WKH�FDXFXV��WKH�SHWLWLRQ�SURFHVV��DQG�UHGXFLQJ�WKH�
QXPEHU�RI�PHPEHUV�UHTXLUHG�WR�VLJQ�HOHFWLRQ�WRWDOV�RQ�PDFKLQH�FRXQWHG�EDOORWV�IURP�VL[�
����WR�WKUHH������

$SSOLFDQWV�PD\�SLFN�XS�DQG�GURS�RII�DSSOLFDWLRQ�PDWHULDOV�LQ�WKH�PDLQ�RIILFH�RI�1RUEHUW�
+LOO�GXULQJ�EXVLQHVV�KRXUV�WKH�ZHHN�RI�0D\���WK�±�0D\���WK��7KH�VDPH SURFHGXUHV�IRU�
DSSOLFDWLRQ�SURFHVV�ZLOO�EH�LQ�SODFH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG¶V�$SSOLFDWLRQV�
623��ZLWK�WKH�H[FHSWLRQ�RI�WKH�FDXFXV�DQG�SHWLWLRQ�SURFHVV��7KH�ERDUG�KDV�GLVFXVVHG�
DSSOLFDQWV�DSSO\LQJ�YLD�PDLO��ID[��RU�H�PDLO�DQG�EHOLHYH�WKDW�WKHUH�ZLOO�EH�WRR�PXFK�URRP�
IRU�HUURU�DQG�ZDQW�WR�IROORZ�WKH�SURFHVV�RI�WXUQLQJ�LQ�DSSOLFDWLRQV�LQ�SHUVRQ�WR�WKH�%&�
6XSSRUW�2IILFH��

3XEOLF�3DFNHW ���RI���17 of 23



��ŐŽŽĚ�ŵŝŶĚ͘���ŐŽŽĚ�ŚĞĂƌƚ͘���ƐƚƌŽŶŐ�ĨŝƌĞ͘

7KH�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG�EHOLHYHV�WKH�UHIHUHQGXP�TXHVWLRQ�LV�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�SDUW�RI�WKH�HOHFWLRQ�
SURFHVV�DQG�ZDQW�WKH�UHJLVWHUHG�YRWHUV�RI�WKH�PHPEHUVKLS�WR�EH�DEOH�WR�H[HUFLVH�WKDW�
RSWLRQ��'XH�WR�WKH�FDQFHOODWLRQ�RI�WKH�FDXFXV��UHJLVWHUHG�YRWHUV�ZRXOG�VWLOO�EH�DEOH�WR�
SURYLGH�WKHLU�TXHVWLRQ�LQ�ZULWLQJ�WR�WKH�%&�6XSSRUW�2IILFH�GXULQJ�WKH�ZHHN�RI�0D\���WK�±�
0D\���WK GXULQJ�EXVLQHVV�KRXUV�

5HTXHVW

,Q�SUHSDUDWLRQV�IRU�WKH������6SHFLDO�(OHFWLRQ��WKH�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG�LV�UHVSHFWIXOO\�
UHTXHVWLQJ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�HPHUJHQF\�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�WKH�(OHFWLRQ�/DZ�

(OLPLQDWH�WKH�FDXFXV�IURP�WKH�HOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�>��2�&���������@�
5HTXLUH�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�WR�VXEPLW�DQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�LQ�RUGHU�WR�KDYH�KLV�RU�KHU�QDPH�
SODFHG�RQ�D�EDOORW�IRU�DQ�HOHFWLRQ�>��2�&���������@��
(OLPLQDWH�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQW�IRU�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�WR�REWDLQ�DW�OHDVW�WHQ������VLJQDWXUHV�
RI�TXDOLILHG�YRWHUV�ZKHQ�VXEPLWWLQJ�DQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ WR�EH�SODFHG�RQ�WKH�EDOORW�>��
2�&���������@��
5HIHUHQGXP�TXHVWLRQ�DUH�WR�EH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�ZULWLQJ�WR�WKH�1DWLRQ¶V�6HFUHWDU\�RU�
GHVLJQDWHG�DJHQW��GXULQJ�QRUPDO EXVLQHVV�KRXUV�������WR������0RQGD\�WKURXJK�
)ULGD\� 1R�PDLOHG��LQWHUQDO�1DWLRQ�PDLO�GHOLYHU\��ID[HG�RU�RWKHU�GHOLYHU\�PHWKRG�
VKDOO�EH�DFFHSWHG >��2�&����������@��DQG
5HGXFH�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�2QHLGD�(OHFWLRQ�%RDUG�PHPEHUV�ZKR�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�VLJQ�
WKH�HOHFWLRQ�WRWDOV�RQ�PDFKLQH�FRXQWHG�EDOORWV�IURP�VL[�����WR�WKUHH�����>��2�&��
��������@�

3OHDVH�OHW�XV�NQRZ�RI�DQ\�TXHVWLRQV�FRQFHUQV�

<DZANR

$WWDFKPHQW�
$SSOLFDWLRQ�623

3XEOLF�3DFNHW ���RI���18 of 23



3XEOLF�3DFNHW ���RI���19 of 23

~ TITLE: Applications 

ONEIDA 
ONEIDA NATION 

STANDARD OPERATING 
PROCEDURE 

DIVISION: Non-Divisional 

CHAIRPERSON: 
Candace House 

AUTHOR: 
Oneida Election Board 

1.0 PURPOSE 

REQUIRED APPROVAL BY: 

Oneida Election Board 

SENT TO: 

BC Support Office 

ORIGINATION DATE: 

11/27/2006 
REVISION DATE: 

11/30/2020 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 

After last signature 

DATE: 

\ 1,,/( °' I ~QJJ 
DATE: 

\i /0~1 d.flaCJ 

1.1 To ensure all individuals are provided with a fair process in the handling of 
applications for Oneida Nation elections. 

2.0 DEFINITIONS 
2.1 Application: completed form(s) with required documentation for the elected 

position an individual is running for, including but not limited to: proof of 
residency, degrees/ certifications, etc. 

2.2 Application Checklist: Form used to verify eligibility of an applicant. 
2.3 Background Check: Investigation conducted by the Oneida Background 

Investigations Depru.tment. 
2.4 Business Committee Support Office: Designated agent for submission/distribution 

of application packets, formally Tribal Secretru.y's Office. 
2.5 Candidate: Petitioner or nominee whose application has been officially accepted 

and approved as eligible to be placed on the ballot. 
2.6 Ce1tified Mail: Method of tracking letters sent from Oneida Election Board to 

applicants/candidates. 
2. 7 Date Stamper: Mechanism used to record date and time of application submission. 
2.8 Election: Held to fill vacancies on boards, committees and commissions in 

accordance with the Boru.·ds, Committees, and Commissions Law and Election 
Law. 

2.9 Election Board: Individuals elected and/or appointed to serve on the Election 
Boru.·d (a.k.a. Board Members). 

2.10 Enrollment Office: Official Oneida Nation entity responsible for 
verification of enrollment. 

2.11 Nominee: Individual nominated at an Election Caucus. 
2.12 Oneida Election Law: Law which governs Oneida elections. 

1 



3XEOLF�3DFNHW ���RI���20 of 23

2.13 Petitioner: Applicant running for an elected position, who is required to complete 
the Official Election Petition fmm and obtain signatures. 

3.0 WORK STANDARD 
3.1 Applicant must use most recently approved application form(s). 
3 .2 Applicants must complete a separate application for each position they are running 

for. 
3 .3 Incomplete application deems an applicant ineligible. 
3.4 Per Election Law 102.6-4 A person who runs for a position on the Oneida 

Business Committee, or a position on a judicial comt or commission, shall not run 
for more than one (1) elective office or seat per election. 

4.0 PROCEDURES 
4.1 Nominations Process 

4.1.1 See Conducting Elections SOP (Section 3.2 Caucus) 

4.2 Petitions Process 
4.2.1 Ensure there are ample blank applications. If additional applications 

needed, order from Oneida Printing. 
4.2.2 Any applicant may petition to be placed on a ballot according to the 

following procedures: 
4.2.2.1 Petitions must be presented to the Business Committee 

Support Office, during normal business hours, 8:00a.m. -
4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday, but no later than prior to 
close of business on the deadline date. The location to drop 
off petitions shall be identified in the mailing identifying 
the caucus date. 

4.2.2.2 

4.2.2.3 

4.2.2.4 

4.2.2.5 

4.2.2.6 

Petitioners must complete an official petition form which 
may be obtained in the Business Committee Supp01i Office 
or at the caucus. 
If running for a position on two (2) or more boards, 
committees or commissions, the potential candidate must 
complete a separate official petition form for each position 
running for unless nominated at the caucus. All petitions 
must be with original signatures for each position, no 
copies will be accepted. 
Petitioner must obtain no less than ten (10) signatures of 
enrolled Tribal members who are eligible to vote as defined 
by Atticle Ill, Section 2 in the Oneida Tribal constitution. 
The Election Board shall have an Enrollment Officer verify 
all signatures contained on the petition. (See Timetable in 
Conducting Elections SOP.) 
Candidate petition form shall consist of: 
• Endorsee's printed name and address 
• Endorsee's date of birth 

2 



3XEOLF�3DFNHW ���RI���21 of 23

4.3 Applications Process 

• Endorsee's Oneida Tribe enrollment number 
• Endorsee's signature 
• Petitioner's name, roll number, and position running for 
• Enrollment verification (filled out by Enrollments 

Department) 

4.3.1 Applications and petitions will be made available at the caucus and 
thereafter through the Business Committee Support Office. 

4.3.2 Completed applications are to be submitted to Business Committee 
Support Office. (Deadline is noticed on applications.) 
4.3 .2.1 Any reproduction of the original application, whether 

carbon copied, photocopied, faxed, scanned or by any other 
process shall NOT be considered valid as the original & 
will be deemed ineligible for candidacy. 

4.3.3 Information included in application is as follows (see attached 
application): 

• Information sheet (what is required of applicants) 
• Triplicated 3-page Application Form 
• Triplicated Official Election Petition Form 

4.3.4 Applications received are date/time stamped and are placed on ballot 
in the order received. (See Ballots SOP.) 

4.3.5 Once deadline has been reached, applications are placed in sealed 
container and picked up by Chair or designee. 

4.3.6 Applications reviewed by Election Board to determine candidate 
eligibility. 
4.3.6.1 See Timetable in Conducting Elections SOP to determine 

date to review applications. 
4.3.6.2 Reference Applications Checklist per Board, Committee, 

and Commission qualifications. 
4.3.7 Designated copy of triplicated application will be furnished to 

Enrollments Department for verification of Tribal enrollment of 
applicant and/or petitioners. 

4.3.8 Designated copy of triplicated application will be furnished to 
Backgrounds Department for background checks for the vacancies 

· with this requirement. (See examples of memorandums sent.) 
4.3.9 GTC LRC - Designated copy of triplicated application will be 

furnished to Judiciary for Admission to Practice verification. 
4.3 .10 Judicial candidates will be notified via e-mail from the 

Election_Boai·d@oneidanation.org and/or via certified mail to contact 
the Psychological Testing Vendor to set up an appointment to get the 
required Psychological Test done. 
4.3.10.1 The Election Board will verify eligibility once results are 

received from the vendor. 

3 



3XEOLF�3DFNHW ���RI���22 of 23

4.3.11 

4.3.12 

Those applications that do not provide the proper back-up 
documentation proving they possess the necessary qualifications will 
be deemed as incomplete and applicant will not be eligible for 
candidacy. 
Board reviews applications for completeness and candidate eligibility 
is determined. (See Timetable in Conducing Elections SOP and 
Applications Checklist.) 
4.3.12.1 Applications checklist will consist of Election Board 

members filling out the following information: 
• Candidate name 
• Date/Time application was received 
• Checkoff boxes: enrollment, petition, 

qualifications (varies per subsection), background 
check 

• Reviewed and checked by Board member 
• Date reviewed and checked 

4.3.13 Letters sent to applicants regarding notice of eligibility or ineligibility 
via certified mail or other tracking method. 

5.0 REFERENCES 
5.1 Conducting Elections SOP 
5 .2 Oneida Constitution 
5.3 Uniform Application 
5.4 Ballots SOP 
5.5 Memo to Backgrounds 
5.6 Applications Checklist 
5. 7 Eligible/Ineligible Letters 
5.8 Election Law 

4 



1 3/31/2021 8:57 AMLOC

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

April 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

May 2021April 2021

Mar 28 29 30 31 Apr 1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
8:30am LOC Prep

(BC_Conf_Roo
m) - Clorissa 

9:00am LOC 
Meeting 
(BC_Conf_Roo

1:30pm Public 
Peace Law 

1:30pm Budget 
Management 
and Control 
Law 
Amendments 
Work Meeting
 (Microsoft 
Teams 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
10:00am 

Children's 
Code 
Amendments 
Work Meeting
(Microsoft 
Teams 
Meeting) - 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24
8:30am LOC Prep

(BC_Conf_Roo
m) - Clorissa 

9:00am LOC 
Meeting  
(BC_Conf_Roo

1:30pm 
Children's 

25 26 27 28 29 30 May 1
9:00am LOC 

Work Session 
(Microsoft 
Teams 
Meeting) - 
Clorissa N. 
Santiago

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

23 of 23


	I.  Agenda
	II.1 March 3, 2021 LOC Meeting Minutes
	III.1 Audit Committee Bylaws Amendments CS
	III.1.2 Draft Amendments (Redline to Current)
	III.1.3 Legislative Analysis

	IV.1.1 Election Law Emergency Amendments ARF
	IV.1.2 Backup Materials

	X. Calendar



